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A.  The following are questions received and Fulton County Schools, (FCS) responses for the above-

referenced solicitation: 
 

1. Does FCS have a required turn-around time for this RFP? 
Yes, our anticipated completion date is October 2021. 
 

2. Will FCS provide a meta data match file for the student records? 
FCS will provide metadata to be used for the vendor to create a coversheet for each 
student’s record file. 
 

3. Will the indexing values (school code, student ID#, student name (last, first, middle) be listed in 
the same area on the documents (i.e., tab on each record, first page, second page)? 
No, however, FCS will provide a spreadsheet containing the indexing value to be used to 
facilitate the creation of coversheets for each file. 
 

4. Can FCS provide the percentage of documents that are double sided? 
Approximately 40%. 
 

5. Will FCS provide the awarded vendor a “sample” of the documents prior to the project start 
date?? 
Yes. 
 

6. Is FCS looking for a temporary solution to retrieve the documents? 
Yes, but not more than six (6) months for the digital records. 
 

7. Is FCS looking for a long-term hosting solution and should this cost be included in the vendor’s 
response? 
No. 
 

8. Page (31) states 15-inch boxes with 200 files averaging 20 pages per file. That would equate to 
4,000 pages per box but a 15-inch box holds at most 2550 pages.  Could there be more than 600 
boxes? 
No, there will not more than 600 boxes however some boxes will have less than 200 files and 
some files will not have 20 pages. 
 

9. Can we pick up all 600 boxes at once? 
No, we are anticipating having approx. 200 boxes ready by May 1, 2021 and batch pick-ups 
scheduled until the goal is reached. 

10. The solicitation states that vendors must provide secure boxes for shipping. Are they not boxed 
already?  Do you want the vendor to box the documents? 
Yes, they are currently boxed in used records center boxes.  No, if current boxes are not 
sufficient and new boxes are provided, the files can be re-boxed in office before pick-up. 
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11. If not boxed how were the 600 boxes figure calculated? 

The number of boxes were derived from survey and onsite inventory. 
 

12. Are there any color documents?  If so, do they need to be captured in color? 
Yes, there are color documents, however, we are asking they be scanned in black and 
white.   
 

13. Do you currently have a content management system?  If you do, would you consider using it to 
store these files? 
Yes, after verification of scanning. 
 

14. Does FCS currently have a document and records management system in place? 
Yes. 
 

15. Is FCS looking to have a repository separate from your current solution to be integrated and 
manage this data? 
We are looking for a temporary online repository/location for approximately six (6) until 
documents can be imported into our current system. 
 

16. How many users would need access to this secure online location for FCS to retrieve records? 
Three (3). 
 

17. Will all records be boxed in advance by the school system, or are some of these files still in 
cabinets or on shelves? 
They will be boxed in advance. 
 

18. Are detailed inventory lists including the number of files per box and/or a full listing of files in 
each box an absolute requirement of the vendor during the pick-up process?  
An electronic contents list that includes a full listing of files and number of documents in 
each file will be included with each box, we are asking that the list is verified as the records 
are scanned. 
 

19. Is it essential that imaged files include a barcoded coversheet if the vendor can supply the desired 
index information and file naming conventions with guaranteed accuracy without using them? 
We would have to test this to ensure each file is separated and accounted for. 
 

20. Can the school system supply the winning vendor with a database of students that connects the 
Student ID numbers with other information such as names, dates of birth or originating schools? 
An electronic spreadsheet containing this information will be available to the vendor. 
 

21. Will student ID numbers appear on every folder in these boxes? 
No. 
 

22. We are confused by pages 32-34 which suggest that the vendor will need to provide and 
incorporate hardware for the existing data center? 
We are not asking for the vendor to provide hardware.  Pages 32-34 are for informational 
purposes and outlines the technical configuration that will work with our systems. 
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23. Will bitonal scanning be sufficient for all records (black and white)? 

Yes, we are requesting that all documents be scanned in Black and White. 
 

24. Can vendors provide alternate pricing for any “exceptional boxes” that may be encountered, such 
as records averaging under five (5) pages each (old transcript cards, for example) or is the 
District certain that all targeted records will average approx. 20 pages each, as stipulated? 
Approximately 40% of folders will average less than 20 pages. 
 

25. How old are the oldest records being scanned here? 
Records are from 2009. 
 

26. Does the district utilize an existing digital platform (such as PowerSchool) that could potentially 
incorporate digitized files? 
Yes.   
 

27. Can you please confirm there are an estimated of 200 (average) folders per box and 20 (average) 
pages per folder? 
Approximately 60% of the boxes will have less than 200 files and approximately 40% of the 
files will not have 20 pages. 
 

28. Can you confirm only the boxes that are in bad shape need to be replaced with new boxes? 
Yes, however we are changing out torn boxes when possible. 
 

29. What is the estimated number of boxes that need replaced? 
So far none are torn however they are used boxes with previous markings on the boxes. 
 

30. Can the unit cost of the boxes and the unit cost to move the files from the old boxes to the new 
boxes be listed as on optional line item due to the fact it’s not clear if they will be needed? 
Yes.  
 

31. What are the expected turnaround times for paper file pulls and retrieval as well as the 
anticipated number of requests per day? 
We request the turn-around time for requested records to be within two business days. We 
do not anticipate this to happen often, if at all. 
 

32. Can FCS provide a spreadsheet of the information requested? 
Yes, this will be provided in digital and printed format. 
 

33. Who makes the determination that boxes are needed, how do we charge, and what happens if the 
boxes we supply are not exactly the same (pricing)? 
It would be a joint determination.  We have changed out torn boxes when possible. Include 
the charge for boxes as a line item in the proposal. The proposal should include pricing for 
+/-600 boxes. 
 

34. Are the documents in color?  If so, what percentage should we assume are color for pricing 
purposes? 
Some documents are in color, approximately 30%, however we only want them scanned in 
black and white. 
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35. Do the boxes contain folders? If so, do the folders also need to be scanned? 

Yes, they contain folders, however, they are not to be scanned. 
 

36. By “Local hosting or premise-based technical configuration”, does this allow for a cloud-based 
system? 
Yes. 
 

37. If the vendor security meets or exceeds all FERPA requirements, are you open to a cloud-based 
system that will serve as both the vendor secured server as well as the FCS secured server? 
Yes, access must be provided in order to run our process. 
 

38. If the application is installed in your data center, can we use the same secured server for the 
vendor-provided server and the FCS-secured server? 
Yes. 
 

39. If we can use the infrastructure environment specifications without modification, is the vendor 
expected to provide the hardware? Or will FCS provide hardware in this case? 
Vendor will be responsible for meeting all requirements, to include purchasing of any 
necessary hardware/software. 
 

40. By your definition, what is the difference in a local hosting option and a premise-based technical 
configuration? 
Local hosting option are items we support, vendor information will need to work with FCS 
configurations, and premise-based are those items vendor supports, they will need to work 
with FCS configuration settings as well. 
 

41. Will schools and FCS personnel need read-only access or read/ write access to the files? If so, 
how many people will be accessing the files simultaneously? 
Read only is needed.  Three (3) people will require access. 
 

42. Should the vendor provide for a re-process workflow where FCS can flag documents needed for 
correction and submit errors or questions to the vendor for needed corrections? 
The verification process should be completed by the vendor, we will need a process in place 
to notify vendor when/if there are documents that need to be rescanned. A workflow is not 
necessary. 
 

43. Can the work be done outside of the state of Georgia?  
No. 
   

44. We do not currently have a Fulton County, GA business license.  Is this required by the time of 
bid, or can this be obtained post-award?  
It is requested that you submit this information with your proposal, however, we will 
afford you the opportunity to provide prior to awarding the contract.  
 

45. On page 32, we are unclear about why item 5. FCS Infrastructure Standards is listed here.  We 
plan to do all imaging and then transfer images via FTP, so we did not expect these standards 
applied to this project.  Please clarify.  
This is included for informational purposes only. 
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46. On page 38, we have questions about the last item regarding Scanning Cover Sheet.  The first 
part sounds like it’s a sheet for the outside of the box, but then it includes Student ID #’s. Will 
every Student ID # contained in the box be on this cover sheet? A cover sheet will need to be 
created for each student in the box.   This sounds like a multi-page manifest instead of a cover 
sheet, but maybe the terminology is used interchangeably.  Please explain.  
The cover sheet will not be on the outside of the box but will need to be created for each file 
in the box.    
 

47. On page 38, the last item talks about final output.  Is this referring to a naming convention?  
Please confirm.  
Yes.  This should be the naming convention used when creating the coversheets to separate 
each student in the box.  
 

48. On page 38, the last line states “listed information will be provided by FCS”.  Where are we 
getting this from?  Will we key this in?  Scan from barcodes?  From folders? 
 FCS will provide an electronic spreadsheet to the vendor listing each student using this 
naming convention. 
 

49. Please clarify on page 40 to “house digitized documents in a secure cloud location” versus what 
we read on page 42 “Vendor will load scanned files on a secure FTP server”.  Can everything be 
provided via FTP?  
Yes, FTP will be fine. 
 

50. On page 42, the last item regarding FERPA states, “Records Management will provide with each 
box an index copy of box contents to securely account for/match records transferred” – is this 
like a manifest?  
Yes 
 

51. On page 43, do you require a web-based “dashboard”, or can this be a regular e-mailed report?   
Yes, it can be an emailed report. 
 

52. On page 43, “Dashboard/Report”, please explain the pick-up of backlog records.  Throughout the 
rest of the RFP, it seemed as if all records could be picked up at one time – this is important for 
potential bidders outside of the Atlanta area.   
We are receiving and preparing records on a regular basis.  They will need to be picked up 
in batches with the first batch being approximately 200 boxes. 
 

B. All other terms and conditions remain the same. 

 


